# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549-1004

### FORM 8-K

# CURRENT REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported) November 12, 2014

### **GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY**

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

**DELAWARE** (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation)

**001-34960** (Commission File Number)

**27-0756180** (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

**300 Renaissance Center, Detroit, Michigan** (Address of Principal Executive Offices)

**48265-3000** (Zip Code)

(313) 556-5000 (Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

#### **Not Applicable**

(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

heck rovisi	the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following ons:
]	Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)
	Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17-CFR 240.14a-12)
]	Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

#### Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement

On November 12, 2014, General Motors Company (the "Company") completed an underwritten public offering of \$2.5 billion aggregate principal amount of its senior notes, consisting of \$500 million aggregate principal amount of 4.00% Senior Notes due 2025 (the "2025 Notes"), \$750 million aggregate principal amount of 5.00% Senior Notes due 2035 (the "2035 Notes") and \$1.25 billion aggregate principal amount of 5.20% Senior Notes due 2045 (the "2045 Notes" and, together with the 2025 Notes and the 2035 Notes, the "Notes"). The Notes were issued pursuant to the Prospectus Supplement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on November 4, 2014, and the Prospectus dated April 30, 2014, filed as part of the Company's shelf registration statement (File No. 333-195601) that became effective under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, when filed with the SEC on April 30, 2014 (the "Registration Statement").

The Notes were issued as a separate series of debt securities pursuant to the indenture (the "Base Indenture") dated as of September 27, 2013 between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (the "Trustee"). On November 12, 2014, in connection with the issuance of Notes, the Company entered into a second supplemental indenture to the Base Indenture between the Company and the Trustee (the "Supplemental Indenture"). The Supplemental Indenture, along with the Base Indenture between the Company and the Trustee, each as amended and supplemented, govern the terms of the Notes.

The Supplemental Indenture is filed as Exhibit 4.4 to this Form 8-K and is incorporated by reference into the Registration Statement. The foregoing description does not constitute a complete summary of the Supplemental Indenture and is qualified by reference in its entirety to the full text of the Supplemental Indenture filed herewith.

A copy of the legal opinion and consent of Robert C. Shrosbree, Esq., Executive Director, Legal, Corporate & Securities, Company Legal Staff, in connection with the issuance of the Notes is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.1 and is incorporated by reference into the Registration Statement.

#### **Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits**

#### **EXHIBITS**

<u>Exhibit</u>	<u>Description</u>	Method of Filing
Exhibit 4.1	Form of General Motors Company 4.00% Senior Notes due 2025 (included in Exhibit 4.4)	Attached as Exhibit
Exhibit 4.2	Form of General Motors Company 5.00% Senior Notes due 2035 (included in Exhibit 4.4)	Attached as Exhibit
Exhibit 4.3	Form of General Motors Company 5.20% Senior Notes due 2045 (included in Exhibit 4.4)	Attached as Exhibit
Exhibit 4.4	Supplemental Indenture, dated November 12, 2014, to Base Indenture, dated September 27, 2013, between General Motors Company, as issuer and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee	Attached as Exhibit
Exhibit 5.1	Opinion of Robert C. Shrosbree, Esq.	Attached as Exhibit
Exhibit 23.1	Consent of Robert C. Shrosbree, Esq. (included in Exhibit 5.1)	Attached as Exhibit

### **SIGNATURE**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY

(Registrant)

/s/ THOMAS S. TIMKO

By: Thomas S. Timko

Date: November 12, 2014

Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

### **GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY**

and

## THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, as Trustee

### SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE

Dated as of November 12, 2014

to

### **INDENTURE**

Dated as of September 27, 2013

4.000% Senior Notes due 2025

**5.000% Senior Notes due 2035** 

**5.200% Senior Notes due 2045** 

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
Article 1 DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION	2
Section 1.01. Definition of Terms	2
Section 1.02. Relationship with Base Indenture	2
Article 2 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF NOTES	2
Section 2.01. Designation and Principal Amount	2
Section 2.02. Maturity	3
Section 2.03. Further Issues	3
Section 2.04. Payment	3
Section 2.05. Interest	4
Section 2.06. Authorized Denominations	4
Section 2.07. Redemption and Sinking Fund	4
Section 2.08. Ranking	5
Section 2.09. Appointments	5
Section 2.10. Waiver of Certain Covenants	5
Section 2.11. Defeasance	5
Section 2.12. <i>Guarantees</i>	6
Article 3 COVENANTS	6
Section 3.01. Additional Covenants	6
Section 3.02. <i>Definitions</i>	6
Section 3.03. Limitation on Liens	7
Section 3.04. Limitation on Sales and Lease-Backs	9
Article 4 FORM OF NOTES	9
Section 4.01. Form of Notes	10
Section 4.02. Global Securities	10
Article 5 ORIGINAL ISSUE OF NOTES	12
Section 5.01. Original Issue of Notes	12
Article 6 MISCELLANEOUS	12
Section 6.01. Ratification of Base Indenture	12
Section 6.02. Trustee Not Responsible for Recitals	13
Section 6.03. Governing Law	13
Section 6.04. Separability Clause	13
Section 6.05. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents	13
Section 6.06. <i>Counterparts</i>	13

EXHIBIT A-1 Form of 2025 Notes	A-1-1
EXHIBIT A-2 Form of 2035 Notes	A-2-1
EXHIBIT A-3 Form of 2045 Notes	A-3-1

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of November 12, 2014 (this "*Supplemental Indenture*"), between General Motors Company, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of Delaware (herein called the "*Company*"), having its principal office at 300 Renaissance Center, Detroit, Michigan 48265-3000, and The Bank of New York Mellon, a New York banking corporation, as trustee (herein called the "*Trustee*").

#### RECITALS OF THE COMPANY

WHEREAS, the Company has executed and delivered the Indenture, dated as of September 27, 2013 (as supplemented prior to the date hereof, the "*Base Indenture*" and, together with this Supplemental Indenture, the "*Indenture*"), to the Trustee, to provide for the issuance of the Company's debt securities (the "*Securities*"), to be issued in one or more series;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Base Indenture, the Company desires to provide for the establishment of three new series of its Securities under the Base Indenture to be known as its "4.000% Senior Notes due 2025" (the "2025 Notes"), "5.000% Senior Notes due 2035" (the "2035 Notes") and "5.200% Senior Notes due 2045" (the "2045 Notes," and, together with the 2025 Notes and the 2035 Notes, the "Notes"), respectively, the form and substance and the terms, provisions and conditions thereof to be set forth as provided in the Base Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company by duly adopted resolutions has authorized, among other things, the issuance of the Notes and the execution and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture;

WHEREAS, this Supplemental Indenture is being entered into pursuant to the provisions of Section 901 of the Base Indenture;

WHEREAS, the Company hereby requests that the Trustee join with the Company in the execution and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture; and

WHEREAS, all things necessary to make this Supplemental Indenture a valid agreement of the Company, in accordance with its terms, and to make the Notes, when executed and delivered by the Company and authenticated by the Trustee, the valid obligations of the Company, have been performed.

### NOW, THEREFORE, THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE WITNESSETH:

For and in consideration of the premises and the purchase of the Notes by the Holders thereof, and for the purpose of setting forth, as provided in the Base Indenture, the forms and terms of the Notes, the Company covenants and agrees with the Trustee, as follows:

### ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION

Section 1.01. *Definition of Terms.* Unless the context otherwise requires:

- (a) the terms defined in this Supplemental Indenture (except as herein otherwise expressly provided or unless the context of this Supplemental Indenture otherwise requires) for all purposes of this Supplemental Indenture and of any indenture supplemental hereto have the respective meanings specified in this Supplemental Indenture. All other terms used in this Supplemental Indenture that are defined in the Base Indenture, either directly or by reference therein (except as herein otherwise expressly provided or unless the context of this Supplemental Indenture otherwise requires), have the respective meanings assigned to such terms in the Base Indenture, as in force at the date of this Supplemental Indenture as originally executed; *provided* that any term that is defined in both the Base Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture shall have the meaning assigned to such term in this Supplemental Indenture;
  - (b) the singular includes the plural, and vice versa; and
  - (c) headings are for convenience of reference only and do not affect interpretation.

Section 1.02. *Relationship with Base Indenture*. The terms and provisions contained in the Base Indenture will constitute, and are hereby expressly made, a part of this Supplemental Indenture. However, to the extent any provision of the Base Indenture conflicts with the express provisions of this Supplemental Indenture, the provisions of this Supplemental Indenture will govern and be controlling.

### ARTICLE 2 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF NOTES

Section 2.01. Designation and Principal Amount.

- (a) There is hereby authorized and established a series of Securities under the Base Indenture, designated as the "4.000% Senior Notes due 2025," which is initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$500,000,000 (except upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, or in lieu of, other 2025 Notes pursuant to Section 304, 305, 306, 311, 906 or 1106 of the Base Indenture and except for any Notes which, pursuant to Section 303 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered).
- (b) There is hereby authorized and established a series of Securities under the Base Indenture, designated as the "5.000% Senior Notes due 2035," which is initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$750,000,000 (except upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, or in lieu of, other 2035 Notes pursuant to Section 304, 305, 306, 311, 906 or 1106 of the Base Indenture and except for any Notes which,

pursuant to Section 303 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered).

(c) There is hereby authorized and established a series of Securities under the Base Indenture, designated as the "5.200% Senior Notes due 2045," which is initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$1,250,000,000 (except upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, or in lieu of, other 2045 Notes pursuant to Section 304, 305, 306, 311, 906 or 1106 of the Base Indenture and except for any Notes which, pursuant to Section 303 of the Base Indenture, are deemed never to have been authenticated and delivered).

Section 2.02. Maturity.

- (a) The Stated Maturity of principal of the 2025 Notes shall be April 1, 2025.
- (b) The Stated Maturity of principal of the 2035 Notes shall be April 1, 2035.
- (c) The Stated Maturity of principal of the 2045 Notes shall be April 1, 2045.

Section 2.03. *Further Issues*. The Company may at any time and from time to time, without the consent of the Holders of the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, increase the principal amount of the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes that may be issued under the Indenture and issue additional 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes; *provided that* if the additional 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes are not fungible with the then-outstanding 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, respectively, the additional 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes shall have separate CUSIP numbers. Any such additional 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, respectively, but may be offered at a different offering price or have a different issue date, initial interest accrual or initial interest payment date than such 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, respectively. Any such additional 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, together with the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes herein provided for, shall each respectively constitute a single series of Securities under the Base Indenture.

Section 2.04. *Payment*. Principal of and interest on the Notes shall be payable in U.S. dollars in immediately available funds at the office or agency of the Company maintained for such purpose, which shall initially be at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee; *provided*, *however*, that payment of interest may be made at the option of the Company through the Paying Agent by check mailed to the Holder at such address as shall appear in the Security Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such Holder or by wire transfer to an account appropriately designated by the Holder to the Company and the Trustee; and *provided*, *further*, that the Company through the Paying Agent shall pay principal of and interest on the Notes in the form of Global Securities registered in the name of or held by The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") or such other Depositary as may from time to time be designated pursuant to the terms of the

Indenture, or its respective nominee, by wire transfer in immediately available funds to such Depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered holder of such Notes in the form of Global Securities.

Section 2.05. Interest.

- (a) The 2025 Notes shall bear interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) from November 12, 2014 at the rate of 4.000% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. Interest payable on each Interest Payment Date shall include interest accrued from November 12, 2014, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for. The Interest Payment Dates on which such interest shall be payable are April 1 and October 1, commencing on April 1, 2015; and the Record Date for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date is the close of business on the March 17 or September 16 (whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, next preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date.
- (b) The 2035 Notes shall bear interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) from November 12, 2014 at the rate of 5.000% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. Interest payable on each Interest Payment Date shall include interest accrued from November 12, 2014, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for. The Interest Payment Dates on which such interest shall be payable are April 1 and October 1, commencing on April 1, 2015; and the Record Date for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date is the close of business on the March 17 or September 16 (whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, next preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date.
- (c) The 2045 Notes shall bear interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) from November 12, 2014 at the rate of 5.200% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. Interest payable on each Interest Payment Date shall include interest accrued from November 12, 2014, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for. The Interest Payment Dates on which such interest shall be payable are April 1 and October 1, commencing on April 1, 2015; and the Record Date for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date is the close of business on the March 17 or September 16 (whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, next preceding the relevant Interest Payment Date.

Section 2.06. *Authorized Denominations*. Each of the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes and 2045 Notes shall be issuable in denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.

Section 2.07. *Redemption and Sinking Fund.* 

(a) The 2025 Notes shall not be redeemable at the option of the Company except as set forth in Section 2 of the 2025 Notes. The 2025 Notes shall not be redeemable at the option of the Holders. The 2025 Notes shall not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund.

- (b) The 2035 Notes shall not be redeemable at the option of the Company except as set forth in Section 2 of the 2035 Notes. The 2035 Notes shall not be redeemable at the option of the Holders. The 2035 Notes shall not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund.
- (c) The 2045 Notes shall not be redeemable at the option of the Company except as set forth in Section 2 of the 2045 Notes. The 2045 Notes shall not be redeemable at the option of the Holders. The 2045 Notes shall not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund.
- Section 2.08. *Ranking*. Each of the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes and 2045 Notes shall be senior unsecured debt securities of the Company, ranking equally with the Company's other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness.
- Section 2.09. *Appointments*. The Trustee shall be the initial Security Registrar and initial Paying Agent for each of the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes and 2045 Notes.
- Section 2.10. Waiver of Certain Covenants. Without in any way limiting the applicability of Section 1006 of the Base Indenture with respect to the Notes, the Company may, with respect to the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, also omit in a particular instance to comply with any term, provision or condition set forth in Article 3 of this Supplemental Indenture, if, before or after the time for such compliance, the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, respectively, at the time Outstanding shall, by Act of such Holders, either waive such compliance in such instance or generally waive compliance with such term, provision or condition, but no such waiver shall extend to or affect such term, provision or condition except to the extent so expressly waived, and, until such waiver becomes effective, the obligations of the Company and the duties of the Trustee in respect of any such term, provision or condition shall remain in full force and effect. Nothing in this Section 2.10 shall affect the Company's requirement to comply with Section 513 of the Base Indenture with respect to waivers of past defaults under the Base Indenture.
- Section 2.11. *Defeasance*. The Company may elect, at its option at any time, pursuant to Section 402 of the Base Indenture, to have Section 403 or Section 404 in the Base Indenture, or both, apply to the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, respectively, or any principal amount thereof. Without in any way limiting the applicability of Section 404 of the Base Indenture with respect to the Notes, upon the Company's exercise of its option to have Section 404 of the Base Indenture applied to all of the Outstanding 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, (1) the Company shall also be deemed to be released from and may omit to comply with its obligations under the covenants contained in Article 3 of this Supplemental Indenture with respect to the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes, respectively, and (2) the failure to comply with any such obligation, covenant, restriction, term or other provision shall not constitute (and shall be deemed not to be or result in) an Event of Default under Section 501(4) or Section 501(7) of the Base Indenture, in each case with respect to the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes,

respectively, on and after the date the conditions set forth in Section 405 of the Base Indenture are satisfied.

Section 2.12. *Guarantees*. None of the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes or 2045 Notes shall be guaranteed by any Person.

### ARTICLE 3 COVENANTS

Section 3.01. *Additional Covenants*. In addition to the covenants stated in Article Ten of the Base Indenture, the Notes will be subject to the covenants set forth in Sections 3.03 and 3.04 below. For the avoidance of doubt, the covenants set forth in Sections 3.03 and 3.04 below are solely for the benefit of the Holders of the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes and 2045 Notes, and are not for the benefit of, or applicable to, any other debt securities issued under the Base Indenture or any other supplemental indenture.

Section 3.02. *Definitions*. The following definitions shall be applicable to Sections 3.03 and 3.04 below:

"Attributable Debt" means, at the time of determination as to any lease, the present value (discounted at the actual rate, if stated, or, if no rate is stated, the implicit rate of interest of such lease transaction as determined by the Company's Chairman, President or any Vice Chairman, the Company's Chief Financial Officer, any Vice President, the Company's Treasurer or any Assistant Treasurer), calculated using the interval of scheduled rental payments under such lease, of the obligation of the lessee for net rental payments during the remaining term of such lease (excluding any subsequent renewal or other extension options held by the lessee). The term "net rental payments" means, with respect to any lease for any period, the sum of the rental and other payments required to be paid in such period by the lessee thereunder, but not including, however, any amounts required to be paid by such lessee (whether or not designated as rental or additional rental) on account of maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates, indemnities or similar charges required to be paid by such lessee thereunder contingent upon the amount of sales, earnings or profits or of maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates, indemnities or similar charges; provided, however, that, in the case of any lease which is terminable by the lessee upon the payment of a penalty in an amount which is less than the total discounted net rental payments required to be paid from the later of the first date upon which such lease may be so terminated and the date of the determination of net rental payments, "net rental payments" shall include the then current amount of such penalty from the later of such two dates, and shall exclude the rental payments relating to the remaining period of the lease commencing with the later of such two dates.

"Consolidated Tangible Assets" means, on the date of determination, total assets less goodwill and other intangible assets of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries, in each case as set forth on the most recently available consolidated balance

sheet of the Company and its Subsidiaries in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

"Debt" means notes, bonds, debentures or other similar evidences of indebtedness for money borrowed.

"Manufacturing Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary (A) substantially all the property of which is located within the continental United States of America, (B) which owns a Principal Domestic Manufacturing Property and (C) in which the Company's investment, direct or indirect and whether in the form of equity, debt, advances or otherwise, is in excess of \$2,500,000,000 as shown on the consolidated books of the Company as of the end of the fiscal year immediately preceding the date of determination; provided, however, that "Manufacturing Subsidiary" shall not include any Subsidiary which is principally engaged in leasing or in financing installment receivables or otherwise providing financial or insurance services to the Company or others or which is principally engaged in financing the Company's operations outside the continental United States of America.

"*Mortgage*" means any mortgage, pledge, lien, security interest, conditional sale or other title retention agreement or other similar encumbrance.

"Principal Domestic Manufacturing Property" means all real property located within the continental United States of America and constituting part of any manufacturing plant or facility owned and operated by the Company or any Manufacturing Subsidiary, together with such manufacturing plant or facility (including all plumbing, electrical, ventilating, heating, cooling, lighting and other utility systems, ducts and pipes attached to or constituting a part thereof, but excluding all trade fixtures (unless such trade fixtures are attached to the manufacturing plant or facility in a manner that does not permit removal therefrom without causing substantial damage thereto), business machinery, equipment, motorized vehicles, tools, supplies and materials, security systems, cameras, inventory and other personal property and materials), unless, in the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, such manufacturing plant or facility is not of material importance to the total business conducted by the Company and its consolidated affiliates as an entity.

"Subsidiary" means any corporation of which at least a majority of the outstanding stock having by the terms thereof ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors of such corporation (irrespective of whether or not at the time stock of any other class or classes of such corporation shall have or might have voting power by reason of the happening of any contingency) is at the time owned by the Company, or by one or more Subsidiaries, or by the Company and one or more Subsidiaries.

Section 3.03. *Limitation on Liens*. For the benefit of the Notes, the Company will not, nor will the Company permit any Manufacturing Subsidiary to, issue or assume any Debt secured by a Mortgage upon any Principal Domestic Manufacturing Property of

the Company or any Manufacturing Subsidiary or upon any shares of stock or indebtedness of any Manufacturing Subsidiary (whether such Principal Domestic Manufacturing Property, shares of stock or indebtedness are now owned or hereafter acquired) without in any such case effectively providing concurrently with the issuance or assumption of any such Debt that the Notes (together with, if the Company shall so determine, any other indebtedness of the Company or such Manufacturing Subsidiary ranking equally with the Notes and then existing or thereafter created) shall be secured equally and ratably with such Debt, unless the aggregate amount of Debt issued or assumed and so secured by Mortgages, together with all other Debt of the Company and its Manufacturing Subsidiaries which (if originally issued or assumed at such time) would otherwise be subject to the foregoing restrictions, but not including Debt permitted to be secured under clauses (i) through (vii) of the immediately following paragraph, does not at the time exceed 15% of the Consolidated Tangible Assets of the Company

The above restrictions shall not apply to Debt secured by:

- (i) Mortgages on property, shares of stock or indebtedness of any corporation existing at the time such corporation becomes a Manufacturing Subsidiary;
- (ii) Mortgages on property existing at the time of acquisition thereof or to secure the payment of all or any part of the purchase or construction price of property, or to secure Debt incurred for the purpose of financing all or part of the purchase or construction price of property or the cost of improvements on property, which Debt is incurred prior to, at the time of, or within 180 days after the later of such acquisition or completion of such improvements or construction or commencement of full operation of such property;
- (iii) Mortgages securing Debt of a Manufacturing Subsidiary owing to the Company or to another Manufacturing Subsidiary;
- (iv) Mortgages on property of a corporation existing at the time such corporation is merged or consolidated with the Company or a Manufacturing Subsidiary or at the time of a sale, lease or other disposition of the properties of a corporation as an entirety or substantially as an entirety to the Company or a Manufacturing Subsidiary;
- (v) Mortgages in favor of the United States of America or any State thereof, or any department, agency or instrumentality or political subdivision of the United States of America or any State thereof, or in favor of any other country, or any political subdivision thereof, to secure partial, progress, advance or other payments pursuant to any contract or statute or to secure any indebtedness incurred or guaranteed for the purpose of financing all or any part of the purchase price or the cost of construction or improvement of the property subject to such Mortgages (including, without limitation, Mortgages incurred in connection with pollution control, industrial revenue or similar financing);

- (vi) Mortgages existing on November 12, 2014 or
- (vii) any extension, renewal or replacement (or successive extensions, renewals or replacements) in whole or in part of any Mortgage referred to in the foregoing clauses (i) to (vi) or in this clause (vii); provided, however, that the principal amount of Debt secured thereby shall not exceed the principal amount of Debt so secured at the time of such extension, renewal or replacement and that such extension, renewal or replacement shall be limited to all or a part of the property which secured the Mortgage so extended, renewed or replaced (plus improvements on such property).
- Section 3.04. *Limitation on Sales and Lease-Backs*. For the benefit of the Notes, the Company will not, nor will the Company permit any Manufacturing Subsidiary to, enter into any arrangement with any person providing for the leasing by the Company or any Manufacturing Subsidiary of any Principal Domestic Manufacturing Property owned by the Company or any Manufacturing Subsidiary on November 12, 2014 (except for temporary leases for a term of not more than five years and except for leases between the Company and a Manufacturing Subsidiary or between Manufacturing Subsidiaries), which property has been or is to be sold or transferred by the Company or such Manufacturing Subsidiary to such person, unless either:
  - (i) the Company or such Manufacturing Subsidiary would be entitled, pursuant to the provisions of Section 3.03 above, to issue, assume, extend, renew or replace Debt secured by a Mortgage upon such property at least equal in amount to the Attributable Debt in respect of such arrangement without equally and ratably securing the Notes; provided, however, that from and after the date on which such arrangement becomes effective the Attributable Debt in respect of such arrangement shall be deemed for all purposes under Section 3.03 above and this Section 3.04 to be Debt subject to the provisions of Section 3.03 above (which provisions include the exceptions set forth in clauses (i) through (vii) of Section 3.03 above); or
  - (ii) the Company shall apply an amount in cash equal to the Attributable Debt in respect of such arrangement within 180 days of the effective date of any such arrangement to either (or a combination) of (i) the retirement (other than any mandatory retirement or by way of payment at maturity) of Debt of ours or any Manufacturing Subsidiary (other than Debt owned by the Company or any Manufacturing Subsidiary) which by its terms matures at or is extendible or renewable at the option of the obligor to a date more than twelve months after the date of the creation of such Debt, or (ii) the purchase, construction or development by the Company or a Manufacturing Subsidiary of other comparable property.

ARTICLE 4 FORM OF NOTES

### Section 4.01. Form of Notes.

- (a) The 2025 Notes and the Trustee's certificate of authentication thereon shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A-1 hereto, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions and other variations as are required or permitted by the Base Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture, and may have such letters, numbers or other marks of identification and such legends or endorsements placed thereon as may be required to comply with applicable tax laws or the rules of any securities exchange or Depositary therefor or as may, consistent herewith, be determined by the signatory authorized by the Company to execute such 2025 Notes, as evidenced by the execution thereof. All 2025 Notes shall be in fully registered form.
- (b) The 2035 Notes and the Trustee's certificate of authentication thereon shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A-2 hereto, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions and other variations as are required or permitted by the Base Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture, and may have such letters, numbers or other marks of identification and such legends or endorsements placed thereon as may be required to comply with applicable tax laws or the rules of any securities exchange or Depositary therefor or as may, consistent herewith, be determined by the signatory authorized by the Company to execute such 2035 Notes, as evidenced by the execution thereof. All 2035 Notes shall be in fully registered form.
- (c) The 2045 Notes and the Trustee's certificate of authentication thereon shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A-3 hereto, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions and other variations as are required or permitted by the Base Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture, and may have such letters, numbers or other marks of identification and such legends or endorsements placed thereon as may be required to comply with applicable tax laws or the rules of any securities exchange or Depositary therefor or as may, consistent herewith, be determined by the signatory authorized by the Company to execute such 2045 Notes. All 2045 Notes shall be in fully registered form.

#### Section 4.02. *Global Securities*.

(a) Upon their original issuance, the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes and 2045 Notes shall each be issued in the form of one or more permanent global notes in definitive, fully registered form without interest coupons (the "Global Securities") and shall constitute "Global Securities" under the Base Indenture. Each such Global Security shall be duly executed by the Company, shall be authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and shall be initially registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for the Depositary. DTC shall be the initial Depositary for the 2025 Notes, 2035 Notes and 2045 Notes upon their original issuance. Beneficial interests in the Global Securities will be shown on, and transfers will only be made through, the records maintained by the Depositary, its members or its direct or indirect participants, including Euroclear and Clearstream (collectively, the "Agent Members").

The Agent Members shall have no rights under the Base Indenture or the Supplemental Indenture with respect to any Global Security held on their behalf by the Depositary, or the Trustee as its custodian, or under the Global Securities. The Depositary or its nominee may be treated by the Company, the Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee as the absolute owner of the Global Securities for all purposes whatsoever. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall prevent the Company, the Trustee or any agent of the Company or the Trustee from giving effect to any written certification, proxy or other authorization furnished by the Depositary (or its nominee), or impair, as between the Depositary and its Agent Members, the operation of customary practices governing the exercise of the rights of a Holder of any Note.

- (b) (i) Transfers of Global Securities shall be limited to transfer in whole, but not in part, to the Depositary, its successors or their respective nominees, except as provided in the Base Indenture. Interests of beneficial owners in the Global Securities may be transferred or exchanged in the name of any Person other than the Depositary or its nominee only in accordance with the applicable rules and procedures of the Depositary and the applicable provisions of Section 311 of the Base Indenture. Global Securities also may be exchanged or replaced, in whole or in part, as provided in Sections 304 and 306 of the Base Indenture. A Global Security may not be exchanged for another Note other than as provided in this Section 4.02(b) or the Base Indenture.
  - (ii) At such time as all beneficial interests in a particular Global Security have been exchanged for Notes that are issued, under the circumstances permitted under the Base Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture, in the name of a Person other than the Depositary or its nominee (a "Definitive Security") or a particular Global Security has been redeemed, repurchased or cancelled in whole and not in part, each such Global Security shall be returned to or retained and cancelled by the Trustee in accordance with Section 3.09 of the Base Indenture. At any time prior to such cancellation, if any beneficial interest in a Global Security is being exchanged for or transferred to a Person who will take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Security of the same series or for Definitive Securities, or is being surrendered by the Company for cancellation after redemption, repurchase or other acquisition by the Company, the principal amount of Notes represented by such Global Security shall be reduced accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on such Global Security by the Security Registrar or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such reduction; and if the beneficial interest is being exchanged for or transferred to a Person who will take delivery thereof in the form of a beneficial interest in another Global Security of the same series, such other Global Security shall be increased accordingly and an endorsement shall be made on such other Global Security by the Security Registrar or by the Depositary at the direction of the Trustee to reflect such increase.
- (c) Each Note certificate evidencing the Global Securities shall bear a legend in substantially the following form (each defined term in the legend being defined as such for purposes of the legend only):

"UNLESS THIS CERTIFICATE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), NEW YORK, NEW YORK, TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO., OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

TRANSFERS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS IN WHOLE, BUT NOT IN PART, TO DTC, TO NOMINEES OF DTC OR TO A SUCCESSOR THEREOF OR SUCH SUCCESSOR'S NOMINEE AND TRANSFERS OF PORTIONS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH IN THE INDENTURE REFERRED TO ON THE REVERSE HEREOF."

### ARTICLE 5 ORIGINAL ISSUE OF NOTES

Section 5.01. Original Issue of Notes.

- (a) The 2025 Notes may, upon execution of this Supplemental Indenture, be executed by the Company and delivered to the Trustee for authentication, and the Trustee shall, upon Company Order, authenticate and deliver such 2025 Notes as in such Company Order provided.
- (b) The 2035 Notes may, upon execution of this Supplemental Indenture, be executed by the Company and delivered to the Trustee for authentication, and the Trustee shall, upon Company Order, authenticate and deliver such 2035 Notes as in such Company Order provided.
- (c) The 2045 Notes may, upon execution of this Supplemental Indenture, be executed by the Company and delivered to the Trustee for authentication, and the Trustee shall, upon Company Order, authenticate and deliver such 2045 Notes as in such Company Order provided.

### ARTICLE 6 MISCELLANEOUS

Section 6.01. *Ratification of Base Indenture*. The Base Indenture, as supplemented by this Supplemental Indenture, is in all respects ratified and confirmed, and this Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed part of the Base Indenture in the

manner and to the extent herein and therein provided; *provided*, *however*, that the provisions of this Supplemental Indenture shall apply solely with respect to the Notes and not to any other series of Securities issued under the Base Indenture.

Section 6.02. *Trustee Not Responsible for Recitals*. The recitals herein contained are made solely by the Company and not by the Trustee, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the correctness thereof. The Trustee makes no representation as to the validity, sufficiency or adequacy of this Supplemental Indenture.

Section 6.03. *Governing Law*. This Supplemental Indenture and the Notes shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the State of New York in the United States. EACH OF THE COMPANY, THE TRUSTEE AND EACH HOLDER OF THE NOTES BY ITS ACCEPTANCE THEREOF, HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, THE NOTES OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY.

Section 6.04. *Separability Clause*. In case any provision in the Base Indenture, this Supplemental Indenture or in the Notes is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

Section 6.05. *Effect of Headings and Table of Contents*. The Article and Section headings herein and the Table of Contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

Section 6.06. *Counterparts*. This Supplemental Indenture may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. The exchange of copies of this Supplemental Indenture and of signature pages by facsimile or electronic format (i.e., "pdf" or "tif") transmission shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture as to the parties hereto and may be used in lieu of the original Supplemental Indenture for all purposes. Signatures of the parties hereto transmitted by facsimile or electronic format (i.e., "pdf" or "tif") shall be deemed to be their original signatures for all purposes.

[Signature page follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Second Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY

By: /s/ CHARLES K. STEVENS III

Name: Charles K. Stevens III Title: Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

[Company Signature Page to Second Supplemental Indenture]

# THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, as Trustee

By: /s/ LAURENCE J. O'BRIEN

Name: Laurence J. O'Brien

Title: Vice President

[Trustee Signature Page to Second Supplemental Indenture]

### [FORM OF 4.000% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2025]

[Global Security Legend]

UNLESS THIS CERTIFICATE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), NEW YORK, NEW YORK, TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO., OR SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO., OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

TRANSFERS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS IN WHOLE, BUT NOT IN PART, TO DTC, TO NOMINEES OF DTC OR TO A SUCCESSOR THEREOF OR SUCH SUCCESSOR'S NOMINEE AND TRANSFERS OF PORTIONS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH IN THE INDENTURE REFERRED TO ON THE REVERSE HEREOF.

### **GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY**

4.000% Senior Notes due 2025

CUSIP No.: 37045VAG5 ISIN No.: US37045VAG59

No. [] \$[]

GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of Delaware (the "Company," which term includes any successor Person under the Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to pay to CEDE & CO., or registered assigns, the principal sum of \$[]([] DOLLARS)[, as revised by the Schedule of Increases and Decreases attached hereto,]¹ on April 1, 2025, and to pay interest thereon from November 12, 2014 or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing on April 1, 2015, at the rate of 4.000% per annum, until the principal hereof is paid or made available for payment. The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the March 17 or September 16 (whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, next preceding such Interest Payment Date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice whereof shall be given to Holders of the Notes not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which the Notes may be listed, and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange, all as more fully provided in the Indenture.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of the Notes set forth on the reverse hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to on the reverse hereof by manual signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> To be included in Global Securities.

GENERAL MOTORS COMPAN	
Ву:	
Name: Title:	

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed.

Dated: November 12, 2014

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, as Trustee
Ву:
Authorized Signatory

This Note is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated: November 12, 2014

### [REVERSE OF NOTE]

1. This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of Securities of the Company (the "Notes"), issued and to be issued in one or more series under the Indenture, dated as of September 27, 2013 (as supplemented prior to the date hereof, the "Base Indenture"), and the Second Supplemental Indenture relating to the Notes dated as of November 12, 2014 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Base Indenture, the "Indenture"), between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (the "Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture), and reference is hereby made to the Indenture for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Note is one of the series designated on the face hereof, such series initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$500,000,000; provided that the Company may at any time and from time to time, without the consent of any Holder, issue additional Notes of this series.

All terms which are used but not defined in this Note and which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture.

2. The Notes shall be redeemable at any time and from time to time, in whole or in part, at the Company's option, on at least 30 days' but not more than 60 days' prior notice mailed to the registered email or physical address of each Holder of Notes to be redeemed (the "**Redemption Date**"), at a redemption price (the "**Redemption Price**") equal to the greater of: (i) 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed and (ii) as determined by the Company, the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Notes to be redeemed (not including any portion of payments of interest accrued as of the applicable redemption date), discounted to the Redemption Date on a semiannual basis at a rate equal to the sum of the Treasury Rate plus 25 basis points.

The Redemption Price for any Notes redeemed pursuant to this Section 2 shall include accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal amount of such Notes up to, but not including, the Redemption Date. The Redemption Price will be calculated assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Unless the Company defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price, on and after the applicable Redemption Date, interest will cease to accrue on the Notes or portions of the Notes called for redemption.

The provisions of Article Eleven of the Base Indenture shall apply to any redemption of the Notes.

For purposes of this Section 2, the following terms shall have the following specified meanings:

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by a Reference Treasury Dealer as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term of the Notes to be redeemed that would be used, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary

market practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of a comparable maturity to the remaining term of such Notes.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, as determined by the Company, (A) the average of the six Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such Redemption Date, after excluding the highest and lowest of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations or (B) if we obtain fewer than six Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations so received.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means (i) each of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and their respective successors, unless any of them ceases to be a primary United States Government securities dealer in New York City (a "Primary Treasury Dealer"), in which case the Company will substitute therefor another nationally recognized investment banking firm that is a Primary Treasury Dealer and (ii) two other nationally recognized investment banking firms that are Primary Treasury Dealers as selected by the Company.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any Redemption Date, the average, as determined by the Company, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Company by such Reference Treasury Dealer as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third Business Day preceding that Redemption Date.

"*Treasury Rate*" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, the rate per annum equal to the semiannual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, calculated as of the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date, assuming a price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for such Redemption Date.

- 3. The Company shall not consolidate with or merge with or into, or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person, unless the provisions of Article Eight of the Base Indenture are complied with.
- 4. The Base Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment of the Indenture and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes under the Indenture and the Notes at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the consent of the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding. The Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture also contain provisions (including the provisions in Section 1006 of the Base Indenture and Section 2.10 of the Supplemental Indenture) permitting the Holders of specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding, on behalf of the Holders of all Notes, to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and the Notes and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holders of Notes shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holders and upon all future Holders of the Notes and of any Notes issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in

exchange herefor or in lieu hereof, whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Note.

5. If an Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall occur and be continuing, the principal of the Notes may be declared, or shall immediately become, due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

As provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Holders of the Notes shall not have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any other remedy thereunder or hereunder, unless certain conditions set forth in the Indenture are met. The foregoing shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Holder of the Notes for the enforcement of any payment of principal hereof or any premium or interest hereon on or after the respective due dates expressed herein.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and interest on this Note at the times, place and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

- 6. The Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture contain provisions for defeasance at any time of the entire indebtedness of the Notes or certain restrictive covenants and Events of Default with respect to such Notes, in each case upon compliance with certain conditions set forth in the Indenture.
- 7. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations set forth in the Indenture (including the limitations in Section 311 of the Base Indenture), the transfer of this Note is registrable in the Security Register, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer at the office or agency of the Company in any place where the principal of and any interest on this Note are payable, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar duly executed by, the Holder hereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing, and thereupon one or more new Notes and of like tenor, of authorized denominations and for the same aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

The Notes are issuable only in registered form without coupons in denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Trustee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

[This Note is a Global Security and is subject to the provisions of the Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture relating to Global Securities, including the limitations in Section 311 of the Base Indenture on transfers and exchanges of Global Securities.] <sup>1</sup>				
8. This Note and the Indenture shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the State of York in the United States.				

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> To be included in Global Securities.

### SCHEDULE OF INCREASES OR DECREASES $^1$

The following increases and decreases in this Global Security have been made:

Date	Amount of decrease in Principal Amount of this Global Security	Amount of increase in Principal Amount of this Global Security	Security following such decrease or increase	Signature of authorized signatory of Trustee or Security Registrar

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> To be included in Global Securities.

### ASSIGNMENT FORM

To assign this Note, fill in the form below:				
I or we assign and transfer this Note to:				
(Prin	nt or type assignee's name, address and zip code)			
	(Insert assignee's soc. sec. or tax I.D. No.)			
	(Hisert assignee's soc. sec. of tax 1.D. 1vo.)			
and irrevocably appoint agent to act for him.	transfer this Note on the books of the Company. The agent may substitute another to			
Date:	Your Signature:			
Circa and all and a second a second and a second a second and a second a second and	About ide of Abic Nicks			
Sign exactly as your name appears on the or	ther side of this Note.			
Signature Guarantee:				
Date:				
Signature must be guaranteed by a participant in a recognized signature guaranty medallion program or other signature guarantor program reasonably acceptable to the Trustee	Signature of Signature Guarantee			

### [FORM OF 5.000% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2035]

[Global Security Legend]

UNLESS THIS CERTIFICATE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), NEW YORK, NEW YORK, TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO., OR SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO., OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

TRANSFERS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS IN WHOLE, BUT NOT IN PART, TO DTC, TO NOMINEES OF DTC OR TO A SUCCESSOR THEREOF OR SUCH SUCCESSOR'S NOMINEE AND TRANSFERS OF PORTIONS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH IN THE INDENTURE REFERRED TO ON THE REVERSE HEREOF.

### **GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY**

5.000% Senior Notes due 2035

CUSIP No.: 37045VAH3 ISIN No.: US37045VAH33

No. [] \$[]

GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of Delaware (the "Company," which term includes any successor Person under the Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to pay to CEDE & CO., or registered assigns, the principal sum of \$[] ([] DOLLARS)[, as revised by the Schedule of Increases and Decreases attached hereto,]¹ on April 1, 2035, and to pay interest thereon from November 12, 2014 or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing on April 1, 2015, at the rate of 5.000% per annum, until the principal hereof is paid or made available for payment. The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the March 17 or September 16 (whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, next preceding such Interest Payment Date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice whereof shall be given to Holders of the Notes not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which the Notes may be listed, and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange, all as more fully provided in the Indenture.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of the Notes set forth on the reverse hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to on the reverse hereof by manual signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>To be included in Global Securities

GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY	
By:	
	Name:
	Title:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed.

Dated: November 12, 2014

THE 1	BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, as Trustee
By:	
	Authorized Signatory

This Note is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated: November 12, 2014

### [REVERSE OF NOTE]

1. This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of Securities of the Company (the "Notes"), issued and to be issued in one or more series under the Indenture, dated as of September 27, 2013 (as supplemented prior to the date hereof, the "Base Indenture"), and the Second Supplemental Indenture relating to the Notes dated as of November 12, 2014 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Base Indenture, the "Indenture"), between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (the "Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture), and reference is hereby made to the Indenture for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Note is one of the series designated on the face hereof, such series initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$750,000,000; provided that the Company may at any time and from time to time, without the consent of any Holder, issue additional Notes of this series.

All terms which are used but not defined in this Note and which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture.

2. The Notes shall be redeemable at any time and from time to time, in whole or in part, at the Company's option, on at least 30 days' but not more than 60 days' prior notice mailed to the registered email or physical address of each Holder of Notes to be redeemed (the "**Redemption Date**"), at a redemption price (the "**Redemption Price**") equal to the greater of: (i) 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed and (ii) as determined by the Company, the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Notes to be redeemed (not including any portion of payments of interest accrued as of the applicable redemption date), discounted to the Redemption Date on a semiannual basis at a rate equal to the sum of the Treasury Rate plus 30 basis points.

The Redemption Price for any Notes redeemed pursuant to this Section 2 shall include accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal amount of such Notes up to, but not including, the Redemption Date. The Redemption Price will be calculated assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Unless the Company defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price, on and after the applicable Redemption Date, interest will cease to accrue on the Notes or portions of the Notes called for redemption.

The provisions of Article Eleven of the Base Indenture shall apply to any redemption of the Notes.

For purposes of this Section 2, the following terms shall have the following specified meanings:

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by a Reference Treasury Dealer as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term of the Notes to be redeemed that would be used, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary market practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of a comparable maturity to the remaining term of such Notes.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, as determined by the Company, (A) the average of the six Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such Redemption Date, after excluding the highest and lowest of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations or (B) if we obtain fewer than six Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations so received.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means (i) each of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and their respective successors, unless any of them ceases to be a primary United States Government securities dealer in New York City (a "Primary Treasury Dealer"), in which case the Company will substitute therefor another nationally recognized investment banking firm that is a Primary Treasury Dealer and (ii) two other nationally recognized investment banking firms that are Primary Treasury Dealers as selected by the Company.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any Redemption Date, the average, as determined by the Company, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Company by such Reference Treasury Dealer as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third Business Day preceding that Redemption Date.

"*Treasury Rate*" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, the rate per annum equal to the semiannual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, calculated as of the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date, assuming a price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for such Redemption Date.

- 3. The Company shall not consolidate with or merge with or into, or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person, unless the provisions of Article Eight of the Base Indenture are complied with.
- 4. The Base Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment of the Indenture and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes under the Indenture and the Notes at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the consent of the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding. The Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture also contain provisions (including the provisions in Section 1006 of the Base Indenture and Section 2.10 of the Supplemental Indenture) permitting the Holders of specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the

time Outstanding, on behalf of the Holders of all Notes, to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and the Notes and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holders of Notes shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holders and upon all future Holders of the Notes and of any Notes issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof, whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Note.

5. If an Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall occur and be continuing, the principal of the Notes may be declared, or shall immediately become, due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

As provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Holders of the Notes shall not have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any other remedy thereunder or hereunder, unless certain conditions set forth in the Indenture are met. The foregoing shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Holder of the Notes for the enforcement of any payment of principal hereof or any premium or interest hereon on or after the respective due dates expressed herein.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and interest on this Note at the times, place and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

- 6. The Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture contain provisions for defeasance at any time of the entire indebtedness of the Notes or certain restrictive covenants and Events of Default with respect to such Notes, in each case upon compliance with certain conditions set forth in the Indenture.
- 7. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations set forth in the Indenture (including the limitations in Section 311 of the Base Indenture), the transfer of this Note is registrable in the Security Register, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer at the office or agency of the Company in any place where the principal of and any interest on this Note are payable, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar duly executed by, the Holder hereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing, and thereupon one or more new Notes and of like tenor, of authorized denominations and for the same aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

The Notes are issuable only in registered form without coupons in denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name

this Note is registered as the owner hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Trustee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

[This Note is a Global Security and is subject to the provisions of the Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture relating to Global Securities, including the limitations in Section 311 of the Base Indenture on transfers and exchanges of Global Securities.]<sup>1</sup>

8. This Note and the Indenture shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the State of New York in the United States.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>To be included in Global Securities

# SCHEDULE OF INCREASES OR DECREASES<sup>1</sup>

The following increases and decreases in this Global Security have been made:

Date	Amount of decrease in Principal Amount of this Global Security	Amount of increase in Principal Amount of this Global Security	Principal Amount of this Global Security following such decrease or increase	Signature of authorized signatory of Trustee or Security Registrar

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>To be included in Global Securities

## ASSIGNMENT FORM

To assign this Note, fill in the form below:				
I or we assign and transfer this Note to:				
(Prin	t or type assignee's name, address and zip code)			
	(Insert assignee's soc. sec. or tax I.D. No.)			
and irrevocably appoint agent to act for him.	transfer this Note on the books of the Company. The agent may substitute another to			
Date:	Your Signature:			
Sign exactly as your name appears on the ot	her side of this Note.			
Signature Guarantee:				
Date:				
Signature must be guaranteed by a participant in a recognized signature guaranty medallion program or other signature guarantor program reasonably acceptable to the Trustee	Signature of Signature Guarantee			

### [FORM OF 5.200% SENIOR NOTE DUE 2045]

[Global Security Legend]

UNLESS THIS CERTIFICATE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), NEW YORK, NEW YORK, TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO., OR SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO., OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

TRANSFERS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS IN WHOLE, BUT NOT IN PART, TO DTC, TO NOMINEES OF DTC OR TO A SUCCESSOR THEREOF OR SUCH SUCCESSOR'S NOMINEE AND TRANSFERS OF PORTIONS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH IN THE INDENTURE REFERRED TO ON THE REVERSE HEREOF.

### **GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY**

#### 5.200% Senior Notes due 2045

CUSIP No.: 37045VAJ9 ISIN No.: US37045VAJ98

No. [] \$[]

GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of Delaware (the "Company," which term includes any successor Person under the Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to pay to CEDE & CO., or registered assigns, the principal sum of \$[]([]DOLLARS)[, as revised by the Schedule of Increases and Decreases attached hereto,]¹ on April 1, 2045, and to pay interest thereon from November 12, 2014 or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing on April 1, 2015, at the rate of 5.200% per annum, until the principal hereof is paid or made available for payment. The interest so payable, and punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in the Indenture, be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the March 17 or September 16 (whether or not a Business Day), as the case may be, next preceding such Interest Payment Date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for will forthwith cease to be payable to the Holder on such Regular Record Date and may either be paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice whereof shall be given to Holders of the Notes not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date, or be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which the Notes may be listed, and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange, all as more fully provided in the Indenture.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of the Notes set forth on the reverse hereof, which further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Unless the certificate of authentication hereon has been executed by the Trustee referred to on the reverse hereof by manual signature, this Note shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>To be included in Global Securities

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly exec	uted.

Dated: November 12, 2014

<b>GENERAL</b>	MOTORS	<b>COMPANY</b>
----------------	--------	----------------

By:			
	Name:		
	Title:		

	THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, as Trustee
2	By: Authorized Signatory

This Note is one of the Securities of the series designated therein referred to in the within-mentioned Indenture.

Dated: November 12, 2014

### [REVERSE OF NOTE]

1. This Note is one of a duly authorized issue of Securities of the Company (the "Notes"), issued and to be issued in one or more series under the Indenture, dated as of September 27, 2013 (as supplemented prior to the date hereof, the "Base Indenture"), and the Second Supplemental Indenture relating to the Notes dated as of November 12, 2014 (the "Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Base Indenture, the "Indenture"), between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (the "Trustee," which term includes any successor trustee under the Indenture), and reference is hereby made to the Indenture for a statement of the respective rights, limitations of rights, duties and immunities thereunder of the Company, the Trustee and the Holders of the Notes and of the terms upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated and delivered. This Note is one of the series designated on the face hereof, such series initially limited in aggregate principal amount to \$1,250,000,000; provided that the Company may at any time and from time to time, without the consent of any Holder, issue additional Notes of this series.

All terms which are used but not defined in this Note and which are defined in the Indenture shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture.

2. The Notes shall be redeemable at any time and from time to time, in whole or in part, at the Company's option, on at least 30 days' but not more than 60 days' prior notice mailed to the registered email or physical address of each Holder of Notes to be redeemed (the "**Redemption Date**"), at a redemption price (the "**Redemption Price**") equal to the greater of: (i) 100% of the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed and (ii) as determined by the Company, the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Notes to be redeemed (not including any portion of payments of interest accrued as of the applicable redemption date), discounted to the Redemption Date on a semiannual basis at a rate equal to the sum of the Treasury Rate plus 35 basis points.

The Redemption Price for any Notes redeemed pursuant to this Section 2 shall include accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on the principal amount of such Notes up to, but not including, the Redemption Date. The Redemption Price will be calculated assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Unless the Company defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price, on and after the applicable Redemption Date, interest will cease to accrue on the Notes or portions of the Notes called for redemption.

The provisions of Article Eleven of the Base Indenture shall apply to any redemption of the Notes.

For purposes of this Section 2, the following terms shall have the following specified meanings:

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by a Reference Treasury Dealer as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term of the Notes to be redeemed that would be used, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary market practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of a comparable maturity to the remaining term of such Notes.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, as determined by the Company, (A) the average of the six Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such Redemption Date, after excluding the highest and lowest of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations or (B)Error! Reference source not found. if we obtain fewer than six Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations so received.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means (i) each of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and their respective successors, unless any of them ceases to be a primary United States Government securities dealer in New York City (a "Primary Treasury Dealer"), in which case the Company will substitute therefor another nationally recognized investment banking firm that is a Primary Treasury Dealer and (ii) two other nationally recognized investment banking firms that are Primary Treasury Dealers as selected by the Company.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any Redemption Date, the average, as determined by the Company, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Company by such Reference Treasury Dealer as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third Business Day preceding that Redemption Date.

"*Treasury Rate*" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, the rate per annum equal to the semiannual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, calculated as of the third Business Day preceding the Redemption Date, assuming a price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for such Redemption Date.

- 3. The Company shall not consolidate with or merge with or into, or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person, unless the provisions of Article Eight of the Base Indenture are complied with.
- 4. The Base Indenture permits, with certain exceptions as therein provided, the amendment of the Indenture and the modification of the rights and obligations of the Company and the rights of the Holders of the Notes under the Indenture and the Notes at any time by the Company and the Trustee with the consent of the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding. The Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture also contain provisions (including the provisions in Section 1006 of the Base Indenture and Section 2.10 of the Supplemental Indenture) permitting the Holders of specified percentages in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the

time Outstanding, on behalf of the Holders of all Notes, to waive compliance by the Company with certain provisions of the Indenture and the Notes and certain past defaults under the Indenture and their consequences. Any such consent or waiver by the Holders of Notes shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holders and upon all future Holders of the Notes and of any Notes issued upon the registration of transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof, whether or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon this Note.

5. If an Event of Default with respect to the Notes shall occur and be continuing, the principal of the Notes may be declared, or shall immediately become, due and payable in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

As provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Holders of the Notes shall not have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any other remedy thereunder or hereunder, unless certain conditions set forth in the Indenture are met. The foregoing shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Holder of the Notes for the enforcement of any payment of principal hereof or any premium or interest hereon on or after the respective due dates expressed herein.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and interest on this Note at the times, place and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed.

- 6. The Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture contain provisions for defeasance at any time of the entire indebtedness of the Notes or certain restrictive covenants and Events of Default with respect to such Notes, in each case upon compliance with certain conditions set forth in the Indenture.
- 7. As provided in the Indenture and subject to certain limitations set forth in the Indenture (including the limitations in Section 311 of the Base Indenture), the transfer of this Note is registrable in the Security Register, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer at the office or agency of the Company in any place where the principal of and any interest on this Note are payable, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company and the Security Registrar duly executed by, the Holder hereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing, and thereupon one or more new Notes and of like tenor, of authorized denominations and for the same aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

The Notes are issuable only in registered form without coupons in denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.

Prior to due presentment of this Note for registration of transfer, the Company, the Trustee and any agent of the Company or the Trustee may treat the Person in whose name

this Note is registered as the owner hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Note be overdue, and neither the Company, the Trustee nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

[This Note is a Global Security and is subject to the provisions of the Base Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture relating to Global Securities, including the limitations in Section 311 of the Base Indenture on transfers and exchanges of Global Securities.<sup>1</sup>]

8. This Note and the Indenture shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the State of New York in the United States.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>To be included in Global Securities

# SCHEDULE OF INCREASES OR DECREASES $^1$

The following increases and decreases in this Global Security have been made:

Date	Amount of decrease in Principal Amount of this Global Security	Amount of increase in Principal Amount of this Global Security	Principal Amount of this Global Security following such decrease or increase	Signature of authorized signatory of Trustee or Security Registrar

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>To be included in Global Securities

# ASSIGNMENT FORM

To assign this Note, fill in the form below:				
I or we assign and transfer this Note to:				
(Prin	at or type assignee's name, address and zip code)			
	(Insert assignee's soc. sec. or tax I.D. No.)			
and irrevocably appoint agent to act for him.	transfer this Note on the books of the Company. The agent may substitute another to			
Date:	Your Signature:			
Sign exactly as your name appears on the other	her side of this Note.			
Signature Guarantee:				
Date:				
Signature must be guaranteed by a participant in a recognized signature guaranty medallion program or other signature guarantor program reasonably acceptable to the Trustee	Signature of Signature Guarantee			

### Exhibit 5.1



Robert C. Shrosbree Executive Director Legal, Corporate & Securities

General Motors Company Legal Staff 300 GM Renaissance Center Mail Code- 482-C23-D24 Detroit, Michigan, 48265-3000 Tel: 313-665-8452

Fax: 313-665-4979 robert.shrosbree@gm.com

#### OPINION AND CONSENT OF ROBERT C. SHROSBREE, ESQ.

November 12, 2014

General Motors Company 300 Renaissance Center Detroit, Michigan 48265-3000

Re: Offering Pursuant to Registration of Securities on Form S-3

## Ladies and Gentlemen:

I have acted as attorney for General Motors Company, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), in connection with the Company's offering of \$500,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 4.000% Senior Notes due 2025 (the "2025 Notes"), \$750,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 5.000% Senior Notes due 2035 (the "2035 Notes") and \$1,250,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 5.2000% Senior Notes due 2045 (the "2045 Notes" and, together with the 2025 Notes and the 2035 Notes, the "Notes") pursuant to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-195601) filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") on April 30, 2014 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act") (such Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented, the "Registration Statement") in an underwritten public offering pursuant to an underwriting agreement dated November 4, 2014 (the "Underwriting Agreement") among the Company and

General Motors Company November 12, 2014 Page 2

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, as representatives of the several underwriters named in Schedule 1 thereto. The Notes are to be issued as separate series of debt securities pursuant to the indenture (the "Base Indenture") dated as of September 27, 2013 between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (the "Trustee"), as amended and supplemented by the second supplemental indenture dated November 12, 2014 between the Company and the Trustee (the "Supplemental Indenture" and, together with the Base Indenture, each as amended and supplemented, the "Indenture").

In connection with this opinion, I have examined originals, or copies certified or otherwise identified to my satisfaction, of such documents, corporate records and other instruments as I have deemed necessary for the purposes of this opinion, including (a) the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of the Company, each as amended to date; (b) certain minutes and records of corporate proceedings of the Company; and (c) the Registration Statement and exhibits thereto.

For purposes of this opinion, I have assumed the authenticity of all documents submitted to me as originals, the conformity to the originals of all documents submitted to me as copies and the authenticity of the originals of all documents submitted to me as copies. I have also assumed the legal capacity of all natural persons, the genuineness of the signatures of persons signing all documents in connection with which this opinion is rendered, the authority of such persons signing on behalf of the parties thereto other than the Company, and the due authorization, execution and delivery of all documents by the parties thereto other than the Company. As to any facts material to the opinions expressed herein, I have relied upon statements and representations of officers and other representatives of the Company or certificates or comparable documents of public officials and officers and other representatives of the Company.

Based upon the foregoing examination and in reliance thereon, and subject to the qualifications, assumptions and limitations set forth in this letter, I am of the opinion that the Notes have been duly authorized in accordance with the Indenture, and when the Notes have been executed, issued, and authenticated in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and delivered to and paid for by the Underwriters in accordance with the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, the Notes will constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Company.

In connection with the opinion expressed above, I have assumed that, at or prior to the time of the delivery of the Notes, the Indenture and the Notes are each valid, binding and enforceable agreements of each party thereto (other than as expressly covered above in respect of the Company).

My advice on every legal issue in this letter is based exclusively on (i) the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (including the statutory provisions, all applicable provisions of the Delaware Constitution and reported judicial decisions interpreting the foregoing, and (ii) New York law with respect to the Notes offered under the Indenture. My advice represents my opinion as to how such issue would be resolved were it to be considered by the highest court in the jurisdiction that enacted such law. The manner in which any particular issue would be treated in any actual court case would depend in part on facts and circumstances particular to the case, and this letter is not intended to guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute which may arise in the future.

General Motors Company November 12, 2014 Page 3

This opinion is given on the basis of the statutory laws and judicial decisions in effect, and the facts existing, as of the date hereof. I have not undertaken any obligation to advise you of changes in matters of fact or law which may occur after the date hereof.

I do not find it necessary for the purposes of this opinion, and accordingly I do not purport to cover herein, the application of the securities or "Blue Sky" laws of the various states to the issuance and sale of the Notes nor do I express any opinion regarding the Securities Act or any other federal securities laws or regulations. This opinion is limited to the specific issues addressed herein, and no opinion may be inferred or implied beyond that expressly stated herein. This opinion is furnished to the Company in connection with the filing of the Registration Statement and is not to be used, circulated, quoted or otherwise relied upon by the Company for any other purposes.

My opinions expressed above are subject to the qualifications that I express no opinion as to the applicability of, compliance with, or effect of (i) any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, fraudulent transfer, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium or other similar law or judicially developed doctrine in this area (such as substantive consolidation or equitable subordination) affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally, (ii) general principles of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law) and (iii) public policy considerations which may limit the rights of parties to obtain certain remedies.

I hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as Exhibit 5.1 to a report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on the date hereof and further consent to the use of my name under the heading "Legal Matters" in the Registration Statement and the prospectus supplement that forms a part thereof. In giving this consent, I do not thereby admit that I am in the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Securities Act or the rules and regulations of the Commission.

Very truly yours,

/S/ ROBERT C. SHROSBREE

Robert C. Shrosbree

Executive Director Legal, Corporate & Securities